1. Articles- Indefinite
There are 2 indefinite articles in English:
  A= used before singular nouns that begin with consonants. 
   An= used before singular nouns  that begin with vowels     
Consonants= all letters in English except ( a , e , i, o , u )
Vowels= ( a, e , i ,o , u )
 Examples. 
     __book      __orange         __ car       __story       __ egg     __lecture
   __ man       __umbrella    __apple   __ pencil   __table   __ email    
  Note: 1.Remember that all the above words are Singular
   2. We can’t use ( A or An ) before proper nouns, cities, days, months, etc 
     a. be               b. is                   c. was                   d. been
4. Verbs to Have
There are THREE forms of HAVE
A. Have= Present  comes after ( I , You, They, We or after plural nouns) 
  B. Has = Present  comes after ( He, she , it or after singular nouns )
C. Had=  Past        comes after all kinds of nouns plural or singular
Exercise:
1. We _______ a lecture in English yesterday. ( has, have , had, having )
2. My friend________ a new car nowadays. ( has, having, had, have)
3. The students _____ studied English for a month.( has, have, had, having)
4. He has a car.  He doesn’t have a car. Does he have a car?
5. He has got a car. He hasn’t got a car. Has he got a car? 
Note: 1. ( has, have, had) can be used as main verbs like 1 & 2 & 4 in the    
                exercise or as helping verbs as 3 & 5.
 
1. Do- Does- Did- Done- doing
    They are used as helping verbs in order to form Questions & Negative OR used as  
   main verbs. 
 -  I, We, They, You or any plural subjects + do ( Present )
 -  He, She, It + does ( present) 
did   -  Plural OR singular subjects+ 
  - After (has, have, had) + done
  - After ( is, am, are, was, were) + doing ( active progressive) 
e.g:-   - We do the homework every week
           - She does the homework every week
           - The students did the homework last week
           - They are doing the homework now/ at the moment
- Salma has done the homework
2.Prepositions with time ( at- on – in) 
             At = used before o’clock / night
On =before days / following morning
In = before years and months/ morning/ evening / seasons
2. Simple Present Tense
Present simple is used to describe an action which happens repeatedly 
  The verb in this tense has 2 forms:- 
   A . Ends with – s = When the subject is 3rd person : [ He , She & It ]     
         - He/ She drinks coffee every morning.
         - Noura usually sleeps at 11 p.m every night.
         - The sun rises from the east.
   B. without any ending ( infinitive without to)= When the subject is   
        plural, I & You.
          - I sometimes drink coffee.
        - We take a quiz in English language from time to time.
        -  The students  take lessons through the internet once a week   
 
3. Simple Present -Negative forms              
We have two negative forms:-
A.  Doesn’t When the verb ends with s:-
       Kamal Lives in an apartment. 
       Kamal doesn’t live in an apartment. 
 B.  Don’t when the verb is infinitive without to
       We live in an apartment
       We don’t live in an apartment 
We have two forms forms:-
A.  Doesn’t When the verb ends with s:-
       Kamal Lives in an apartment. 
       Does Kamal live in an apartment ?
       Where does Kamal live? – In an apartment 
 B.  Don’t when the verb is infinitive without to
       We live in an apartment
       Do you  live in an apartment ?
       Where do you live? We live in ---

5. Spelling & Pronunciation of Final –s
We have pronunciation forms of final -s:-
A. / s /  when the final letter of the word is [ p, t, k , q, c, ..]
       speaks / sits / picnics …….. Etc 
 B.  / z / when the final letter of the word is [b,  d, g, r,  m, n, l, o, v, y ]
      reads, bags, leaves, listens, boys...etc 
  C. / IZ /  when the final letter is [ ch, sh, z, s, x ] 
     teaches, buses, bushes, axes....etc            
II. Present  Progressive Tense              page 92              
Present Progressive  is used to describe an action which is happening  at the moment / now. 
  The main verb ends with -ing:- 
      A . When the subject is 3rd person : [ He , She & It ]  we put is before the verb.   
         - He/ She is drinking coffee now.
         - Noura  is sleeping at the moment.
         - Look! It is raining  outside.
         - Listen! Someone is knocking at the door.
   B. When the subject is [ I ] we put am  before the verb 
                  - I am drinking coffee now.
   C. When the subject is one of [ we, they or you, plural ] we put are  before the verb 
        - We are  watching the lecture on TV .
        -  The children are playing outside now.   
III. Non-Action Verbs 
Non-Action Verbs are the verbs that have no –ing forms in Present continuous.   
  - see     - hear –  believe- understand -  like – hate – love – dislike –taste  
    – smell –want – need
   IV. Negative Form of Present Progressive Page 99   
In case we are asked to negate the verb in present progressive we just add not after ( is, are or am )
     - He/ She is drinking coffee now.
        He’s not /  is not / isn’t drinking coffee now
      - Reena  is sleeping at the moment.
        Reena  is not / isn’t  sleeping at the moment.
               - I am drinking coffee now.
        I am not / m not drinking coffee now. 
     - We are  watching the lecture on TV .
        We’re not/ are not / aren’t  watching  the lecture on TV.
     -  The children are playing outside now.
        The children are not/ aren’t playing outside now.  
V. Forming Questions on Present  Progressive Tense 
In case we want to form a question we just exchange the   
  subject with ( is, am & are ). 
 A.  Yes/ No Question
         - He is drinking coffee now.
            Is  he drinking coffee now? – Yes, he is OR  No, he isn’t/ is not. 
         - Noura  is sleeping at the moment.
            Is Noura sleeping  at the moment? – Yes, she is OR No, she is not/ isn’t.
                           - I am drinking coffee now.
           Are you drinking coffee now? – Yes, Iam OR No,  Iam not. 
         -  The children are playing outside now. 
            Are the children  playing outside now? – Yes, they are OR No, they are not/ aren’t
V. Forming Questions on Present  Progressive Tense 
In case we want to form a question we just exchange the   
  subject with ( is, am & are ). 
 B.  Information Questions
         - He is drinking coffee now.
           What  is  he drinking  now? – Coffee. 
         -  Salim  is sleeping  in his room at the moment.
            Where  Is Salim sleeping  at the moment? – In his room.
                           - I am going to the bookstore to buy  some books now.
           Why are you going to the bookstore now? – To buy some books. 
         -  The children are playing outside now. 
            Who is  playing outside now? –  The children
            Be careful [ Who is knocking at the door?  - It is Ahmed
IV. Simple Past Tense 
Simple Past Tense  is an action or event that happened in the past ; before now.
 1. The verb is in the second form ( play- played/ go-went ) 
 2.  The indicators ( ago, yesterday, in the past, last , any date in the past)  
 3. No helping verbs
 4. We use didn’t in forming Negative
 5. We use did in forming questions
 We have 2 kinds of verbs:
 A- Regular verbs: end with –ed in past tense
    B- Irregular verbs: they end with different forms in past tense
IV. Using ( many/much/ a few/ a little, some, several…etc )

A. Many, a few , few, some, several = Used before countable nouns
(    Countable nouns ( nouns that can be singular and plural
    e.g [ boy- car – door – page – girl – houses…….etc ]
 B. Much, a little, little, some= Used before uncountable nouns 
    Uncountable nouns ( nouns that don’t have singular or plural forms)
   e.g [ water – sugar – snow – money – food – milk, ……etc ]
 C. A, An , Each & Every = used before singular nouns
D. Any= used in negative and questions.
E. Some= used when we offer something


I. Location or position of Frequency Adverbs  in sentences
1. If there is only a main verb in a sentence we put the frequency   
   adverb immediately before it
    e.g.,- Sami______________ his friends.
            A. respects always                                              B. respects never
            C. always respects                                              D. respects sometimes
   2. If there is only one of the verbs to Be ( is, am, are, was, were ),   
     we put the frequency adverb immediately after that verb to Be.
   e.g.,- The students ________________ afraid of the final tests.
          A. usually are                                                        B. are usually
          C. is usually                                                            D. usually is 
3. If there is a helping verb and a main verb in a sentence we put the   
     frequency adverb between the helping verb and the main verb
    e.g.- Our doctor ______________ his mobile.
            A. has switched off rarely                                           B. has rarely switched off
            C. rarely has switched off                                            D. never has switched off
   4. In case of a question , we just replace the subject with the helping      verb 
   e.g. – The doctor has never disappointed any student.
              Has the doctor ever disappointed any student? 
   Note: Be careful! In questioning, we change never to ever 
III. Past Progressive Tense 
Past Progressive Tense: 
- It is used when we have two events or actions in the past; one of them happened    during the continuation of the other action / or both were in progress.
- The form of the verb [ was OR were + V-ing ] 
     -I, He, She, It + was + V-ing 
     -They, We, You + V-ing     
- We use When, While and As to join two sentences.
e.g. - The doorbell rang .
        - I was watching TV. 
          The doorbell rang while/ as  I was watching TV.
           I was watching TV when the doorbell rang                                             
  IV. Spelling & Pronunciation of Final –ed
We have 3 pronunciation forms of final -ed:- 
  1./t /when the final letter of the word is [ , p, k , s c, f, sh, ch.] 
       talked / helped / introduced, missed …….. Etc
 2.  / d / when the final letter of the word is [b, g, r,  m, n, l, o, v, y,x ]  warned ,dreamed, called, listened, enjoyed...etc 
3. / id /  when the final letter is [ d. t] 
       decided, wanted,,....etc
  Simple Future Tense: 
  It is used to express any event or action which will start after now.
1- The form of the verb: will/ shall/ be going to + infinitive verb without  to 
2- The indicators( adverbs of time) = tomorrow/ next / any date in the future.
I. Simple Future 
Negative form of Simple Future
 I will finish my university study in 2012.
 I will not / won’t finish my study in 2012. 
Forming questions:
He will arrive next Monday.
Will he arrive next Monday? – Yes, he will   OR No, he will not. 
   III- Using Do- does – Did
They are used in TWO situations:
 A. Helping verbs. No meaning 
 In case of a negative form & forming questions which contains only a main verb:-
    Ahmed speaks English well.
    Ahmed doesn’t speak English well.
    Does Ahmed speak English well? – Yes, he does OR No, he doesn’t 
  They play football every day.
    They don’t play football every day.
   Do they play football everyday ?  - Yes, they do OR No, they don’t
   I went to Al-Jubail last week.
   I didn’t go to Al-Jubail last week
   Did you go to Al-Jubail last week?  - Yes, I did  OR  No, I didn’t  
 Note: After  don’t, doesn’t and didn’t, the verb must be infinitive without to 
B. Main Verbs.
In case there is no another verb in a sentence except  one of them ( do, does or did )-
 Here each one of them means work or perform.
I. Adjectives  
Adjectives are used to describe nouns whereas Adverbs are used to describe verbs.
There are three kinds of Adjectives:-
1. Short adjectives [ tall, big, hot, cold, small, thin, slow, quick…..etc ]
2. Long adjectives [ important, difficult, interesting, famous …….etc ]
3. Irregular adjectives [ many, much, little, good, bad …..etc ]
Note 1: We add -ly to most of the adjectives to change them into adverbs.
Note 2: Here are some words that are considered as adjectives and adverbs at the same time.
 [ late, hard- fast …]



1. Similarity
  *[ as + an adjective+ as  ]
Ahmed is as tall as Salim.          ( Short adjective “ tall” )
Ahmed is as famous as salim.  ( Long adjective “ famous’ )
Ahmed is as good as Salim.      ( Irregular adjective “ good” )
   *[ as + an adverb + as ]          
 Ahmed speaks English as fluently as Salim does.
  Women work as hard as men do.
 Note: The negative form of a similarity sentence .
  Ahmed isn’t as tall as Salim. [ Here it is comparative in meaning]
2. Comparative Form
A. If the adjective is short, we add [–er + than] after the short adjective.
  Example
  1- Rami is taller than Fuad.
  2- Fuad is shorter than Rami. 
  3- Fuad isn’t as tall as Rami.
  4- Rami isn’t as short as Fuad.     
  Notice that all these four sentences have the same meaning 
I. Adjectives & Adverbs  
2. Comparative Form
B. If the adjective is long, we add [more+ the adjective + than ] .
  Example
  1- English is more difficult than Arabic.
  2- Arabic is easier/ more easy than English . 
  3- Arabic is less difficult than English
  4- Arabic isn’t as difficult as English.
  5. English isn’t as easy as Arabic.      
  Notice that all these Five  sentences have the same meaning 
3. Superlative Form
  A. If the adjective is short, we add [ the adjective +est + of or in ]  
  Example
   1. A is 183 cm tall.       
   2. B  is  175 cm tall.
  3. C   is  170 cm tall.
A is taller than B.        [ comparative ]
B is taller than C.         [ comparative]
A is  the tallest  of all. [ superlative ]  
C is the shortest of all. [ superlative ]
3. Superlative Form
  B. If the adjective is long, we add [ the most / least + adjective + of or in ] 
  Example
  English  is   the most important language in the world.  
  Notice that we keep the long adjective as it  without any changes.

I. Using Verbs to Have [ Has- Have – Had ]
“Verbs to Have” are used in TWO situations:-
A. Helping verbs: When there is a main verb after each one of them
     [ Be careful that any verb comes after has, have or had must be past participle; the 3rd form of the verb ] 
I. Using Verbs to Have [ Has- Have – Had ]  
- Negative form:
   I have seen the terrible accident.
   I have not/ haven’t seen the terrible accident.  
- Forming a question:
  I have done my homework.
  Have you done your homework? – Yes, I have OR  -No, I haven’t 
I. Using Verbs to Have [ Has- Have – Had ]   
B. As main verbs:  When there is no verb in the sentence except one of them ( has, have, had).  
- Each one of them often means own. 
Example 
 - He has attended the live lecture. [HAS  here is a helping verb]
 - He has a live lecture.                       [ Here HAS is a main verb ]  
 Negative Form: 
 - He has attended the live lecture. [ Here HAS is a helping verb]
    He hasn’t attended  the live lecture. 
 - He has a live lecture.                       [ Here HAS is a main verb ] 
 -  He doesn’t have  a live lecture.   
I. Using Verbs to Have [ Has- Have – Had ]
Forming Questions : 
 - He has attended the live lecture. [ Here HAS is a helping verb]
   Has he attended the live lecture?  - Yes, he has. OR No, he hasn’t
- He has a live lecture.                       [ Here HAS is a main verb ] 
 -Does he have a live lecture?    - Yes, he does.  OR  No, he doesn’t    
Example:  
- They have bought a new car.
Negative    - They  have not bought  a new car.
Yes/No Q    - Have they  bought  a new car?  Yes, they have OR  No, they haven’t.  

        
II. Using ( too, two, to, toe)           
A. Too = very or so
 I can’t carry the box. It’s too heavy.
B. Two= number 1+ 1 = Two
Fuad and Alia are two students.
C. To= Might be a preposition  or expression of purpose.
He went to Riyadh last week.  [ a preposition ]
He decided to meet the doctor. [ expression of purpose ]
D. Toe= a finger in foot
Every normal person has 10 toes in his feet.
III. Giving Advice Using (Should)  
A. Should [ Giving advice to do something at present or in the future]
B. Shouldn’t [ Giving advice not to do anything at present or in the future]
C. Should have 
[ Giving delayed advice that something was hoped to be done but didn’t happen] 
D. Shouldn’t have 
[ Giving a delayed advice that something was hoped to be done but didn’t happen] 


